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DearMr. Góngora:

The Conunissionon Ethics& Public Trustconsideredyour requestandrendered
its opinion ata public meetingheldon August28, 2008.

In your emailsof May21 andJune 11, 2008,you askedif you could appear
beforethe City of Miami Beachwithin two yearsof your serviceon the City
Commissionto representanonprofitorganizationthat hasretainedyou as legal
counsel.

Briefly, the Commissionon Ethicsopinedthat youmaynot appearbeforethe
City of Miami Beachbecauseyour attorney-clientrelationshipwith the nonprofit
organizationdoesnot fall within oneof the exemptionsto the "two-yearrule."
SeeSection2-11.1 q2 of the CountyEthicsCode.

The facts as we understandthem areas follows: You servedas a City
Commissionerin the City of Miami Beachuntil November21, 2007. Recently,
you wereretainedas legal counselby E-COMB, Inc., EnvironmentalCoalition
of Miami Beach,a nonprofitorganizationincorporatedin the State of Florida.
The missionof E-COMB is to foster healthyecosystemsin and aroundBiscayne
Bay. You would like to appearbeforethe City of Miami Beachseekingto
encouragethe City to collaboratewith andparticipatein the generalobjectives
andrelatedeventssupportedby E-COMB.

The Countyordinancegoverningthesefactsis foundat § 2-1 1.1 aJ.Generally,
the lawprohibits former electedofficials from lobbying beforetheir respective
governmentsfor two yearsfollowing their public service.Threeexceptionsto the
prohibition areprovidedin subsectionq2, specifically-

The provisionsof this SubsectionoJshallnot apply to
officials... who becomeemployedby governmentalentities,
501c3 non-profitentitiesor educationalinstitutionsor
entitiesandwho lobby on behalfof suchentities in their official
capacities.Emphasisadded.
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The EthicsCommissionopinedthat beingretainedas legal counselby a
nonprofitorganizationis not the sameas beingemployedby the nonprofit.
Specifically,the Commissionersnotedthat you arecurrentlyemployedby
Becker& Poliakoff. They statedthatyour relationshipto E-COMB is oneof
lawyer-client,not employee-employer.

Consequently,the "two-yearrule" at § 2-1 1.1 q prohibits you from lobbying the
City of Miami Beachon behalfof E-COMB until November21, 2009, basedon
your currentsetof facts.

This opinionconstruesthe Miami-DadeCountyConflict of Interest& Codeof
Ethics Ordinance,but is not applicableto anyconflict understate law. Please
note, for example,that Fla. Stat. 112.31314appearsto prohibit a formercity
official from representingthird parties,for compensation,beforethe former
official’s governingbody, city manager,and stafffor a periodof two years.
Inquiries regardingpossibleconflictsunderstateLaw shouldbe directedto the
Stateof FloridaCommissionon Ethics.

Pleasefeel free to contactVictoria Frigo, StaffAttorney, at 305.350.0601,or
RobertMeyersat 305.579.2594,if we canbe of further assistancein this matter.

Sincerelyyours,

ROBERT MEYERS
ExecutiveDirector

Copy: JeanOlin, SpecialCounsel
City of Miami Beach
Fax 305.673.7002


